10.

A regular meeting of the City Council was held on Thursday January 28, 2019 at the Arnone School, 135 Belmont St., auditorium, due to the elevator not working. Councillor Rodrigues presiding. The meeting was called to order at 7:05 pm with eleven members present

Councillor Eaniri asks for a moment of silence for Ward 3 resident Carl Landerholm, who served as Building Inspector under Mayor Farwell.

In City Council, January 28, 2019

42 Acceptance of the minutes of the January 14, 2019 City Council meeting.

Accepted and placed on file.

#### REPORT

43 Of the Finance Committee for its meeting of January 22, 2019.

Accepted and placed on file.

#### HEARINGS

210 An Ordinance Amending Chapter 27 of the Revised Ordinance of the City of Brockton concerning the regulations and taxation of Marijuana be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Brockton. Article III. General Regulations and Permitted Modifications, is hereby amended by adding the following Section 27-24.4 Adult use of marijuana. (FAVORABLE AS AMENDED IN ORDINANCE COMMITTEE).

No one appeared in favor. No one was in opposition. Hearing held.

Legal Counsel Shannon Resnick suggested waiting until February 11, 2019 City Council meeting. Planning Board will be meeting on February 5, so we will have their report by the meeting.

Councillor Asack motioned to postpone until the February 11, 2019 meeting and was properly seconded by a hand vote. The motion carried by a hand vote.

Councillor Sullivan asks legal counsel to go over it before this time to be sure the changes made in Ordinance Committee are still in place.

45 From the School Department Chief Budget Officer requesting that the City Council authorizes the superintendent to submit to the Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of Interest Form dated February 14, 2019, for the Huntington Therapeutic Day School located at 1121 Warren Avenue., Brockton, MA., for consideration under MSBA priority category #5 "Replacement, renovation or modernization of school facility systems, such as roofs, windows, boilers, heating, and ventilation systems, to increase energy conservation and decrease energy related costs in a school facility".

Accepted and place on file

46 From the Mayor in accordance with M.G.L., Ch. 44, requesting that the City Council authorize Superintendent to submit to the Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of Interest Form dated February 14, 2019, for the Huntington Therapeutic Day School located at 1121 Warren Avenue., Brockton, MA., which describes and explains the deficiencies and the priority category (s), as delineated on the addendum, for which an application may be submitted to the Massachusetts School Building Authority in the future: Huntington School- roof; and hereby further specifically acknowledges that by submitting this Statement of Interest Form, the Massachusetts School Building Authority in no way guarantees the acceptance or the approval of an application, the awarding of a

# 11. COMMUNICATIONS

grant or any other funding commitment from the Massachusetts School Building Authority, or commits the City/Town/ Regional School District to filing an application for funding with the Massachusetts School Building Authority.

Accepted and place on file

47 From the CFO in accordance with Section 5 of Ch. 324 of the Acts of 1990, certifying that the City Council authorize the submission of the Statement of Interest Form (SOI) only, to the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) dated February 14, 2019, for the Huntington Therapeutic Day School located at 1121 Warren Avenue, Brockton, MA. The addendum describes and explains the deficiencies and the priority category(s), for which an application may be submitted to the MSBA in the future; Huntington School-roof; and hereby further specifically acknowledges that by submitting this Statement of Interest form, the MSBA in no way guarantees the acceptance or the approval of an application, the awarding of a grant or any other funding commitment from the MSBA or commits the City of Brockton to filing an application for funding with the MSBA. Furthermore, the City Council and Mayor should be aware that MSBA regulations indicate that a SOI should not be submitted unless the community has the ability to fund the project within two fiscal years, This will entail appropriating funds for planning and feasibility as well as construction. At the present, these costs are unknown, but in his opinion, funding these costs most likely will have a negative impact on continuous provision of services, unless the City obtains a favorable vote on a debt exclusion.

Accepted and place on file

Councillor Sullivan motioned to take out of order and act on item **#63** tonight and was properly seconded. The motion carried by a hand vote.

The Deputy Superintendent of Schools was present to answer any questions and explain the process and need for the order. He explained the order is so they can put in the application. They would still need to come before the council for allocation of funds for projects. The Huntington School application would be pretty quick. The application process for the North School would take about a year.

Councillor Farwell questioned did they already analyze the North Junior High School and can he get the information?

The Deputy Superintendent stated that they had and he can get the information he requested.

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative. Councillor Cruise motioned to file for reconsideration with the wish that it not prevail and was properly seconded. Reconsideration failed by a hand vote.

Councillor Sullivan motioned to take the communications and order regarding North Junior High School out of order and under suspension of the rules and was properly seconded, The motion carried by a hand vote.

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative. Councillor Asack motioned to file for reconsideration with the wish that it not prevail and was properly seconded. Reconsideration failed by a hand vote.

The Deputy Superintendent stated that North is at the top of list for renovations. There's a dire need for improvements to all major systems, such as fire alarm sprinkler. They are

working on emptying out North . Right now, the seventh and eighth graders are there. Next year just eighth grade will be there.

Councillor Eaniri questioned if the Assistant Principal Mrs. Mccormack will remain there in the interim?

The Deputy Superintendent stated that she will be relocated.

Councillor Cruise acknowledges Tom Minichiello, Tim Sullivan, Mark Agostinho, Judy Sullivan and Aldo Petronio in audience.

**48** From the Executive Health Officer requesting that the Mayor and City Council accept the sum of \$7,109.69 from the Massachusetts Association of health Boards (MAHB) for the purpose of building the level of volunteers and equipment for our area Medical Reserve Corp.

Accepted and place on file

**49** From the Mayor in accordance with M.G.L., Ch. 44, requesting that the City Council authorize the acceptance and expenditure of the total grant funds in the amount of \$7,109.69 from the Board of Health-Massachusetts Association of Health Boards Grant to City of Brockton Board of Health-Massachusetts Association of Health Boards Grant Fund ( these grant funds will be used for the purpose of building the level of volunteers and equipment for our area Medical Reserve Corp).

Accepted and place on file

50 From the CFO in accordance with Section 5 of Ch. 324 of the Acts of 1990, certifying the appropriation of additional funds in the amount of\$ 7,109.69 from the Board of Health-Massachusetts Association of Health Boards Grant to City of Brockton Board of Health-Massachusetts Association of Health Boards Grant Fund.

Accepted and place on file

51 From the Chief Budget Officer of the School Department requesting that the City Council authorizes the Superintendent to submit to the Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of Interest Form dated April 11, 2019, for the North Middle School located at 108 Oak Street, Brockton, MA. The school should be considered under MSBA priority category #1 "Replacement or renovation of a building which is structurally unsound or otherwise in a condition seriously jeopardizing the health and safety of school children, where no alternative exists. If a district selects this priority, the MSBA must receive a hard copy of the engineering of other professional report detailing the nature and severity of the problem and a written professional opinion of how imminent the system failure is likely to manifest itself. The report must be from an independent source that is nor under the control of the school district or the city/town. In addition to the independent report, the district must submit photographs of the conditions which caused the district to select Priority #1. In order to bring this school up to the standard requirements for a middle school, current state building codes and ADA (American with Disabilities Act) requirements, a total rehab is necessary. The school will require updates to electrical, heating, ventilation, bathrooms, fire coeds as well as student needs,

Accepted and place on file

52 From the Mayor in accordance with M.G.L., Ch. 44, requesting that the City Council authorize Superintendent to submit to the Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of Interest Form dated April 11, 2019, for the North Middle School, located at 108 Oak Street, Brockton, MA., which describes and explains deficiencies and the priority category(s), as delineated on the addendum, for which an application may be submitted to the Massachusetts School Building Authority in the future: North Middle School-full renovation; and hereby further specifically acknowledges that by submitting this Statement of Interest Form, the Massachusetts School Building Authority in no way guarantees the acceptance or the approval of an application, the awarding of a grant or any other funding commitment from the Massachusetts School Building Authority, or commits the City of Brockton to filing an application for funding with the Massachusetts School Building Authority.

Accepted and place on file

53 From the CFO in accordance with Section 5 of Ch. 324 of the Acts of 1990, certifying that the City Council authorizes the submission of the Statement of Interest Form (SOI) only, to the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) dated April 11, 2019 for the North Middle School located at 108 Oak Street, Brockton, MA. The addendum describes and explains the deficiencies and the priority category(s), for which an application may be submitted to the MSBA in the future: North Middle School-full renovation; and hereby further specifically acknowledges that by submitting this Statement of Interest Form, the MSBA in no way guarantees the acceptance or the approval of an application, the awarding of a grant or any other funding commitment from the MSBA or commits the City of Brockton to filing an application for funding with the MSBA. Furthermore, the City Council and Mayor should be aware that MSBA regulations indicate that a SOI should not be submitted unless the community has the ability to fund the project within two fiscal years. This will entail appropriating funds for planning and feasibility as well as construction. At the present, these costs are unknown, but in his professional opinion, funding these costs most likely will have a negative impact on continuous provision of services, unless the City obtains a favorable vote on a debt exclusion.

Accepted and place on file

54 From the Mayor in accordance with M.G.L., Ch. 44, in order to fund the agreement between the City and the Brockton City Employees Union regarding a compensation and position reclassification study, hereby recommends that the City Council authorize the appropriation of \$73,000 from the Stabilization Fund to Auditors Dept.-Personal Services other than Overtime \$872 Animal Control-Personal Services other than Overtime \$18,138 DPW-Admin-Personal Services other than Overtime \$52 DPW-Refuse Division-Personal Services other than Overtime \$2,199 Information Technology-Personal Services other than Overtime \$14,502 License Commission-Personal Services other than Overtime \$52 Mayor's Office-Personal Services other than Overtime \$3,000 \$30,000 Police-Personal Services other than Overtime Veterans Services-Personal Services other than Overtime \$1,462 \$2,244 Weights and Measures-Personal Services other than Overtime (the letter of agreement is the result of lengthy bargaining between the City and the union over the Upgrade and Reclassification study conducted by D I Jacobs Consulting Company, Inc., the study was agreed to as part of Memorandum of Understanding for the period of 7/1/16 to 6/30/19 between the City of Brockton and Brockton City Employees Union).

Accepted and place on file

55 From the CFO in accordance with Section 5 of Ch. 324 of the Acts of 1990, certifying the proposed appropriation of \$73,000 for purposes of funding the Side Letter of agreement between the City and Brockton and Brockton City Employees Union. For future years, the agreement will place a modest financial pressure on the provision of services due to expected tight budgets. However, this agreement is fair to both City and Employees, and recommends funding it.

Accepted and place on file

**56** From the City Auditor certifying that the balance of the Stabilization Fund as of January 7, 2019 is \$4,561,629.99.

Accepted and place on file

57 From the Mayor in accordance with M.G.L., CH. 44, recommending that the City Council authorize appropriation of \$80,000 from Stabilization Fund to Fire Department / Personal Services Non OT. In order to fund the cost provisions of the attached side letter between the City and the firefighters Union. Effective January 1, 2019, the hazardous duty stipend will be increased by 1%. The terms of this side letter of agreement state that all parties shall not be obligated to any additional bargaining over this issue during negotiations of the successor FY2019 through FY2020 collective bargaining agreement.

Accepted and place on file

58 From the CFO in accordance with Section5 of Ch. 324 of the Acts of 1990, certifying the proposed appropriation of \$80,000 from Stabilization Fund to Fire Department/Personal Services Non OT. Future fiscal years will be slightly stressed by this additional cost.

Accepted and place on file

**59** From the Mayor in accordance with M.G.L., CH. 44, recommending that the City Council authorize appropriation of \$7,800,000 recommended by Attorney Richard Manley of Locke Lord, LLP, the City's bond counsel, in order to provide funding through borrowing said amount, to pay costs of making improvements to the City's Wastewater Treatment Facilities. Subsequent fiscal years may require additional rate increases to pay potential additional costs from the need to replace the current O&M contract which is expiring. When the specific impacts of this become known, recommendations will be made.

Accepted and place on file

60 From the CFO in accordance with Section5 of Ch. 324 of the Acts of 1990, certifying the proposed appropriation and loan order of \$7,800,000 for purposes making improvements to the City's Wastewater Treatment Facilities. A rate increase of five percent will be necessary to ensure the continuous provisions of services. This percentage is comprised of the combined effect of the cost of debt service on the subject loan, plus the cost of the impact of shipping sewer sludge out of town rather than burning and land filling it on site. The present rate structure has not been adjusted for this change. This is a conditional certification which must appear on the loan order. Subsequent fiscal years may require additional rate increases to pay potential additional costs from the need to replace the current O&M contract which is expiring. When the specific impacts of this become known, recommendations will be made.

Accepted and place on file

61 From the Mayor in accordance with M.G.L., CH. 44, recommending that the City Council authorize appropriation of \$42,000 from the Stabilization Fund to Assessors Dept-Personal Services other than overtime \$2,934, Auditors Dept-Personal Services Other Than Overtime \$7,740, Cemetery Dept-Personal Services other than overtime \$1,018, Council On Aging-Personal Services other than overtime \$1,166, DPW-Refuse Division-Personal Services other than overtime \$205, DPW-Water Enterprise-Personal Services Other than Overtime \$3,045, Elections Commission-Personal Services other than overtime \$2,924, Finance Dept-Personal Services other than overtime \$205, Fire-Personal Services other than overtime \$3,653, Board of Health-Personal Services other than overtime \$7,726, Police Dept-Personal Services other than overtime \$1,132, Procurement Dept-Personal Services other than overtime \$730, Public Property –Personal Services other than overtime \$3,653, Tax Dept-Personal Services other tan overtime \$80, Treasurer Dept-Personal Services other tan overtime \$3,870. In order to fund the agreement between the City and the Brockton City Hall Employees Union regarding compensation and position reclassification study. The letter of agreement is the result of lengthy bargaining between the City and the union over the upgrade and reclassification study conducted by D I Jacobs Consulting Company, Inc., the study was agreed to as part of the Memorandum of understanding for the period of 7/1/16 to 6/30/19 between the City of Brockton City Hall Employees Union.

Accepted and place on file

62 From the CFO in accordance with Section5 of Ch. 324 of the Acts of 1990, certifying the proposed appropriation of \$42,000 for purposes of funding the letter of agreement between the City and Brockton and Brockton City Hall Employees Union. For future years, the agreement will place a modest financial pressure on City and Employees, and he recommends funding it.

Accepted and place on file

# **UNFINISHED BUSINESS**

**609** Appointment of Tanya Tillman of 1092 North Main, Brockton, to the Elections Commission for a term of 4 years. (FAVORABLE)

Confirmed by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative.

4 Appointment of Carol Roberts of 755 Crescent St., #516B, Brockton, MA to the Brockton Housing Authority Board of Commissioners for a five year term. (FAVORABLE)

Confirmed by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative.

Appropriation of additional grant funds in the amount of \$175, 200
From: Executive Office of Public Safety and Security-FY19 Municipal
Police Services Staffing Grant
To: City of Brockton Police Department-FY19 Municipal Police Services Staffing Grant
Fund. (FAVORABLE)

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays": eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative.

#### 16. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (Cont'd)

38 Appropriation of the total grant funds in the amount of \$125,000.00
From: Executive Office of Public Safety and Security Office of Grants and Research – SFY 2019 Massachusetts Municipal Public Safety Staffing Grant To: City of Brockton Fire Department –SFY 2019 Massachusetts Municipal Public Safety Staffing Grant Fund. (FAVORABLE)

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative.

Appropriation of the total grant funds in the amount of \$544,527.37
From: Executive Office of Public Safety and Security-FY19 Senator Charles E. Shannon, JR Community Safety Initiative Grant
To: City of Brockton Police Department –FY19 Senator Charles E. Shannon, JR Community Safety Initiative Grant Fund. (FAVORABLE)

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative.

40 Appropriation of the total grant funds in the amount of \$9,253 From: Massachusetts Service Alliance (MSA) To: Brockton Public Library There is a \$10,405.92 match required. (FAVORABLE)

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative.

 Appropriation of the total grant funds in the amount of \$13,586.00
From: Executive Office of Public Safety and Security/Department of Fire Services-FY2019 Student Awareness of Fire Education (S.A.F.E) Grant \$10,386
To: City of Brockton Fire Department-FY2019 Student Awareness of Fire Education (S.A.F.E) Grant Fund and \$3,200
To: City of Brockton Fire Department-FY2019 Senior Safe Grant Fund. (FAVORABLE)

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative.

Councillor Sullivan stepped down.

**551** Resolve: to invite the city solicitor or a representative from the law department to inform the city council and the public as to the new contract with Comcast or if the new contract has not been signed, information as to where we as a community stand on this issue. (FAVORABLE)

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; ten members present and all voting in the affirmative. Councillor Sullivan absent.

Councillor Sullivan stepped back in.

# ORDERS

42 Ordered: That the City Council authorizes the Superintendent to submit to the Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of Interest Form Dated April 11, 2019, for the North Middle School, located at 108 Oak Street, Brockton, MA. (relative to standard requirements for a middle school, current state building codes and ADA requirements).

63 Ordered: That the City Council authorize Superintendent to submit to the Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of Interest Form dated February 14, 2019, for the Huntington Therapeutic Day School located at 1121 Warren Avenue., Brockton, MA (relative to roof repair)

Councillor Lally motioned to take #'s **64-67** collectively and act on them and was properly seconded. The motion carried by a hand vote.

- 64 Ordered: That the common necessity and convenience of the inhabitants of the City of Brockton require the laying out and acceptance of Baldwin Road, extending from Colgate Road westerly and northerly to Vale Street, for that purpose it is necessary to take an easement for Highway Purposes and lay out as a public street or way of said City of Brockton. (Approved. Revote required to be in compliance with 30 day timeframe for recording).
- 65 Ordered: That the common necessity and convenience of the inhabitants of the City of Brockton require the laying out and acceptance of Boundary Circle, extending from Randolph Avenue easterly and northerly to Brookville Avenue, for that purpose it is necessary to take an easement for Highway Purposes and lay out as a public street or way of said City of Brockton. (Approved. Revote required to be in compliance with 30 day timeframe for recording).
- 66 Ordered: That the common necessity and convenience of the inhabitants of the City of Brockton require the laying out and acceptance of Braintree Avenue, extending from Boundary Circle, westerly and northerly to Brookville Avenue, a distance of about 600.48 feet, and for that purpose it is necessary to take an easement for Highway Purposes and lay out as a public street or way of said City of Brockton. (Approved. Revote required to be in compliance with 30 day timeframe for recording).
- 67 Ordered: That the common necessity and convenience of the inhabitants of the City of Brockton require the laying out and acceptance of Vale Street, extending from Norwich Road westerly to Upton Street, a distance of about 636.65 feet, and for that purpose it is necessary to take an easement for Highway Purposes and lay out as a public street or way of said City of Brockton. (Approved. Revote required to be in compliance with 30 day timeframe for recording).

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present with tenl voting in the affirmative. Councillor Eaniri voting in the negative.

Councillor Asack motioned for reconsideration with the wish that it not prevail and was properly seconded. Reconsideration failed by a hand vote with Councillor Eaniri in favor of reconsideration.

Councillor Sullivan questioned whose responsibility is it to record the street acceptances.

The clerk stated that the Engineer records it. We could have recorded a few days late, but we wanted to do it correctly and clean it up.

68 Ordered: That the sum of \$7,800,000 is appropriated to pay costs of making improvements to the City's Wastewater Treatment Facilities, including the payment of all planning and engineering costs, and all other costs incidental and related thereto, and that to meet this appropriation, the Treasurer, with the approval of the Mayor, is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44

and/or M.G.L. c. 29C, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the City therefor; that such bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the City unless the Treasurer with the approval of the Mayor determines that they should be issued as limited obligations and may be secured by local system revenues as defined in M.G.L. c. 29C, §1; that the Treasurer with the approval of the Mayor is authorized to borrow all or a portion of such amount from the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (the ("Trust") established pursuant to M.G.L. c. 29C and in connection therewith to enter into a financing agreement and/or a security agreement with the Trust and otherwise to contract with the Trust and the Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") with respect to such loan and for any federal or state aid available for the project or for the financing thereof; and that the Mayor is authorized to enter into a project regulatory agreement with DEP, to expend all funds available for the project and to take any other action necessary to carry out the project. FURTHER ORDERED: Any premium received by the City upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this order, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this order in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20 of the General Laws, Thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by like amount. FURTHER ORDERED: That the City Treasure is authorized to file an application with The Commonwealth of Massachusetts' Municipal Finance Oversight Board to qualify under M.G.L. c. 44A of the General Laws any and all bonds or notes of the City authorized by this vote, and to provide such information and execute such documents as the Municipal Finance Oversight Board of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts may require. Each order must be published at least 10 days prior to final passage and requires at least a two-thirds vote of all members of the Council. For each order, a certificate from you as the Chief Financial Officer is required by Section 5 of Chapter 324 of Acts of 1990 and should be filled prior to adoption of the loan order. If you do not give the required certification or if you are unable to make the certification without expressing qualifications or contingencies, the loan order may only be passed by the City Council if the absence of such certification or qualified or contingent nature of such certification is expressly noted in such order. If any funds are to be advanced for these purposes and reimbursed from bond proceeds, please note the requirements of M.G.L. c. 44ss 20A and the guidelines issued by the Director of the Bureau of Accounts.

# Referred to Finance

69 Ordered: in order to fund the agreement between the City and the Brockton City Employees Union regarding a compensation and position reclassification study, hereby recommends that the City Council authorize the appropriation of \$73,000 from the Stabilization Fund To various departments (as part of Memorandum of Understanding for the period of 7/1/16 to 6/30/19 between the City of Brockton and Brockton City Employees Union).

# Referred to Finance

70 Ordered: In order to fund the agreement between the City and the Brockton City Hall Employees Union regarding compensation and position reclassification study, the City Council authorize the Appropriation in the amount of \$42,000

From: The Stabilization Fund To various departments (as part of Memorandum of Understanding for the period of 7/1/16 to 6/30/19 between the City of Brockton and Brockton City Employees Union).

#### Referred to Finance

71 Ordered: The City Council hereby extends the Moratorium to prohibit retail stores from Operating and preventing any business license to issue in the City of Brockton relative to the sale of recreational marijuana for a finite period. To allow the City of Brockton Planning Department to convene and vote on the pending Ordinance relative to the Regulation and Zoning of Marijuana facilities, the Moratorium shall be extended for a brief period and be in effect through and including February 28, 2019, or until such time as the pending City Ordinances for licensing and zoning receive final passage, whichever shall be sooner, to ensure the final and proper passage of the pending City Ordinances.

Councillor Sullivan motioned to move under suspension of the rules and act on item **#71** tonight and was properly seconded. He stated that the moratorium lapses in 3 days.

Councillor Farwell had no objections, but would like legal counsel to comment on this. There are 2 establishments so 2 stores should be able to go forward. The boards may need special meetings. Mr. Noble, whom Councillor Farwell doesn't know personally, besides maybe a hello, in legal fairness, the councillor feels Mr. Noble should be exempt.

Legal Counsel stated that it's pending zoning. Medical can still operate. They need to go to site plan review. Their location is grandfathered in.

Councillor Farwell stated that if at the February 11, 2019 meeting, if the report from Planning Board states lack of quorum, or postponed in Planning, we need to do something.

Councillor Eaniri stated that it has nothing to do with the Ordinance Committee. His concern is the locations in ward 3 in industrial area. They have received approximately \$275,000 in revenue. They could have received even more. Lets keep moving forward, as it is not fair to make them keep waiting.

Councillor Sullivan stated that the council got bashed by Mayor. He asked as chairman of the Ordinance Committee when the Planning Board are meeting and they are meeting on February 5. He believes it is because of the Mayor of Brockton and City Planner., because it could've been passed tonight if planning had their meeting. He believes that the council should vote on tonight.

Councillor Nicastro stated that they can't change the date of Planning Board to be any closer, so they should stay the course. They should plan on voting on February 11, 2019. She believes they should insist on special meeting if they don't have a Planning Board meeting.

Councillor Derenoncourt stated that we have obligations. We shouldn't be on a waiting list waiting for Planning Board. Given that the council doesn't have the info, regardless, they can't have a Planning Board meeting any sooner. It is the Planning Board's responsibility to show up and do the job. Whenever they receive an appt., the council should keep that in mind that when we face an appointment, the appointee should be able to be at mtgs.

Councillor Rodrigues cautioned the councilors that they are voting for moratorium not everything to do with marijuana. We run risk of delaying it further. We would go forward without protecting us. We need to extend this.

Legal Counsel stated that they run risk of gap in time of future litigation.

Councillor Derenoncourt believes they need to act on this and Mr. May has been doing a lot of things and not taking responsibility.

Adopted by a roll call vote taken by "yeas" and "nays"; eleven members present and all voting in the affirmative. Councillor Cruise motioned to file for reconsideration with the wish that it not prevail and was properly seconded. Reconsideration failed by a hand vote.

Appropriation of the total grant in the amount of \$7,109.69
From: the Board of Health-Massachusetts Association of Health Boards Grant
To: City of Brockton Board of Health-Massachusetts Association of Health Boards Grant
Fund

Referred to Finance

73 Appropriation of \$80,000
From: Stabilization Fund
To: Fire Department / Personal Services Non OT

Referred to Finance

All items on agenda are available in their entirety for review in the City Clerk's Office for all interested parties.

All council business as listed on the agenda have been emailed to the City Council members in their complete form, with exception of oversized material, such as maps, photos, etc.

Councillor Eaniri takes a moment of personal privilege to thank Aaron for the work associated with taping the meetings. He also stated that if they have a chance to go upstairs, they should notice the committee room which has been painted and cleaned thanks to custodians and the Bldg superintendent.

Councillor Eaniri asked for a moment of silence for Jim and Elie Casieri, and the passing of their son, Chris. We will remember the family in our prayers.

Councillor Lally takes a moment of personal privilege to mention a Ward Mtg. Jan 31, 2019 at 6pm at the Ashfield Middle School. The developer will be there regarding a recreational marijuana proposal. The developer wants to hear residents. Also, on Feb 15 at 3pm, they will celebrate Lithuanian Flag Day at City Hall.

Councillor Farwell takes a moment of personal privilege to state that this agenda has a number of issues with it. He mentions the profoundly negative impacts the requests for funds will be to the city. In his opinion, we need to get a handle on what everything will cost. We have outstanding judgments and if others come forward with litigation against the city, he doesn't know how we would pay for that. Remember it is being appealed, the meter is running. Maybe we should have a Resolve for the Chief Financial Officer to come before us. We are locking ourselves in financially. We do not want to be laying off city workers, because they have no funds. The implications of litigation, loan orders, and union agreements, cause him to see many red flags.

Councillor Beauregard stated that there is still time to do exemptions through the Assessors Office, which will be open at noon on January 31, 2019. There will also be a Ward Mtg. on Jan. 29, 2019 at 630pm. The topic will be Old Colony Planning Council regarding work on Thatcher, Pine and Summer St.

Councillor Sullivan stated that there will be an Ordinance Meeting Thursday after the 11<sup>th</sup>. The items will be the outstanding items that are pending. He will send an email confirming the date.

Councillor Nicastro reminds everyone that on Jan. 30, 2019 from 630-8pm there will be a ward mtg. Due to the crime in the city, Councillor Nicastro has had a lot of upset constituents and concerns will be addressed at the meeting.

Councillor Eaniri- stated that there will be Public Safety Committee Meeting Wednesday, February 13, 2019 possibly, in the basement of City Hall from 530-7pm.

Adjourned 8:20pm